Document Pack

. PEN Mark James LLM, DPA, DCA
oo Sir Gar B Pif Weithredr
< . ief Executive,
Carmarthenshwer Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin. SA31 1JP
Q=2 County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP
n ¢ Y
ty Cov™

WEDNESDAY, 29 MARCH 2017

TO: THE EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER FOR REGENERATION
AND LEISURE

| HEREBY SUMMON YOU TO ATTEND A MEETING OF THE
EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER DECISIONS MEETING FOR
REGENERATION & LEISURE WHICH WILL BE HELD IN
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE ROOM, COUNTY
HALL, CARMARTHEN, AT 10.00 AM, ON WEDNESDAY, 5TH
APRIL, 2017 FOR THE TRANSACTION OF THE BUSINESS
OUTLINED ON THE ATTACHED AGENDA.

Mark_James cee

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

@ PLEASE RECYCLE

Democratic Officer: Martin S. Davies

Telephone (direct line): 01267 224059

E-Mail: MSDavies@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
Ref: AD016-001

w Sir i hf  ECHCNGorarleinamdani
omer Sir Ga_r www.sirgar.lyw.cymru
Carmarthenshire . .
o % YOURCOUNciLdoitonline
nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



AGENDA

. DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL INTERESTS.
. TO SIGN AS A CORRECT RECORD THE DECISION RECORD

OF THE MEETING HELD ON THE 16TH MARCH 2017.

. CARMARTHEN TOWN MUSEUM.
. POLICY FOR PROVISION OF MEMORIAL BENCHES IN PUBLIC

OPEN SPACES.

. FOLLOWING CONSIDERATION OF ALL THE CIRCUMSTANCES

OF THE CASE AND FOLLOWING THE APPLICATION OF THE
PUBLIC INTEREST TEST THE EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER
MAY CONSIDER THAT THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE NOT FOR
PUBLICATION AS THEY CONTAIN EXEMPT INFORMATION AS
DEFINED IN PARAGRAPH 14 OF PART 4 OF SCHEDULE 12A
TO THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 1972 AS AMENDED BY
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION)
(VARIATION) (WALES) ORDER 2007.

. CARMARTHENSHIRE RURAL ENTERPRISE FUND- CAMBRIAN

ICE CREAM.
. CARMARTHENSHIRE RURAL ENTERPRISE FUND- NATURE'S
BEST CATERING.
R~ EICH CYNGORaArleinamdani
o Sir Gar Y wwwisirgar.lyw.cymru

5-14
15-24

25-34

35 - 44

Carmarthenshire e
¢ -4  YOURCOUNciLdoitonline
ity Cou® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



A“%en altem 2

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER DECISIONS MEETING FOR
REGENERATION & LEISURE

THURSDAY, 16 MARCH 2017
PRESENT: Councillor: M. Gravell (Executive Board Member).

The following officers were in attendance:

J. Bowen, Community Regeneration Assistant;

R. Furlong, Grants Support Officer;

J. Hancock, Flagship Social Enterprise Development Officer;
Y. Pellegrotti, Project Coordinator;

M.S. Davies, Democratic Services Officer

1. DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL INTERESTS
There were no declarations of interest.

2, DECISION RECORD - 20TH FEBRUARY 2017
RESOLVED that the decision record of the meeting held on the 20t February
2017 be signed as a correct record.

3. AMENDMENT TO THE 2017-18 CHARGE FOR A FULL SPORTSHALL AT
LLANELLI LEISURE CENTRE.
The Executive Board Member considered a report seeking approval to increase
the cost of the full sports hall at Llanelli Leisure Centre from the agreed charge of
£85 to £86.40 which would be in line with the 2.2% inflation figure and other
leisure centres across the County.

RESOLVED to approve an increase in the cost of hiring the full sports hall at
Llanelli Leisure Centre from the agreed charge of £85 to £86.40.

4, FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FROM THE FOLLOWING GRANT FUND:
TARGETED FINANCE FUND

RESOLVED that the following applications for assistance from the Targeted
Finance Fund be approved subject to the usual terms and conditions and
those specified in the report:

Applicant Award
Llannon Community Council

and Upper Gwendraeth Sports Clubs

and Community Association £20,000.00
CYCA £19,889.00
Black Mountain Centre in partnership with

Quarter Bach Community Council £16,098.00
Ail Gyfle — Second Chance Ltd £9,000.00
Llandovery Sheep Festival £20,000.00

5. REPORTS NOT FOR PUBLICATION
RESOLVED pursuant to The Local Government Act 1972 as, amended by The
Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) (Wales) Order 2007
that the following items were not for publication as the reports contained

o Sir GarJh EICH CYNGOrarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . ]
o oo Your counciL doitonline Page 3
“nty Cow www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



exempt information as defined in Paragraph 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A to
the Act.

CROSS HANDS EAST SURFACE WATER REMOVAL

Following the application of the public interest test it was RESOLVED
pursuant to the Act referred to in minute no. 5 above not to publicise the
content of the report as it contained exempt information relating to the
financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the Authority
holding that information) (Paragraph 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A to the Act).
The public interest test in this matter related to the fact that the report
contained detailed information about the business and financial affairs and
ambitions of the applicants. In this case, the public interest in transparency
and accountability is outweighed by the public interest in maintaining
confidentiality, as disclosure of this information would be likely to damage
the applicants at this stage.

The Executive Board Member considered a report seeking authority to allocate
funding to remove a development constraint relating to surface water removal at
Cross Hands East Strategic Employment site.

RESOLVED to approve a grant of up to a maximum of £20,000 each to two
separate landowners NR Evans and JBCH in order to accelerate the removal
of existing surface water from the foul system and enable the foul water
connection at Cross Hands East.

CARMARTHENSHIRE RURAL ENTERPRISE FUND- HDG FARM SUPPLIES
LTD

Following the application of the public interest test it was RESOLVED
pursuant to the Act referred to in minute no. 5 above not to publicise the
content of the report as it contained exempt information relating to the
financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the Authority
holding that information) (Paragraph 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A to the Act).
The public interest test in this matter related to the fact that the report
contained detailed information about the business and financial affairs and
ambitions of the applicants. In this case, the public interest in transparency
and accountability is outweighed by the public interest in maintaining
confidentiality, as disclosure of this information would be likely to damage
the applicants at this stage.

The Executive Board Member considered an application from HDG Farm Supplies
Ltd for a grant towards the construction of a new purpose built storage and
distribution building in St. Clears which would result in the applicant creating an
additional 5 full time jobs.

RESOLVED that the following application for a grant from the
Carmarthenshire Rural Enterprise Fund be approved subject to the usual
terms and conditions and those specified in the report:-

Applicant / Property Award
HDG Farm Supplies Ltd / Land at St. Clears £100,000.00
EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER DATE

EICH CYNGORarleinamdani

>
omeer Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Page 2 Cafmarthenshirq

q <=2 YOUR counciLdoitonline
“nty Cow www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



Agenda Iltem 3

5™ APRIL 2017
Executive Board Member: Portfolio:
Clir. Meryl Gravell Regeneration & Leisure

CARMARTHEN TOWN MUSEUM

Purpose:

To consider options for the future of Carmarthen Town Museum in light of the Museum’s
Accreditation scheme.

Recommendations / key decisions required:

When Carmarthen Town Museum failed its 2016 VAQAS assessment and the report indicated
major shortcomings with the establishment, it also highlighted other concerns over its
appropriateness as an Accredited Museum and its current location and operation.

The recommended solution to the future of Carmarthen Town Museum would be to :

e Remove Carmarthen Town Museum from the Museum Accreditation scheme and
integrate relevant collections within the new archive/library development.

Alternative options are also considered in the body of this report.

Reasons:

Carmarthenshire Museum Service is required to complete a Museum Accreditation return by
June 2017. A decision relating to Carmarthen Town Museum will impact on the Accreditation
application.

Directorate: Communities Tel No & E-mail Address
Name of Head of Service: 01267 228309:

lan Jones Head of Leisure [Jones@sirgar.gov.uk
Report Author: Museums Development 01267 228696

Morrigan Mason Manager MIMason@sirgar.gov.uk

| Declaration of Personal Interest (if any):None |

| Dispensation Granted to Make Decision (if any):N/A
DECISION MADE:

Signed:
DATE:
EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER
P EICH CYNGORaArleinamdani
oreer Sir qu) www.sirgar.lyw.cymru
Ll YOUuRr counciLdoitonline
Dy o www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales Page S


mailto:IJones@sirgar.gov.uk

The following section will be completed by the Democratic Services Officer in attendance
at the meeting

Recommendation of Officer YES / NO
adopted

Recommendation of the Officer
was adopted subject to the
amendment(s) and reason(s)
specified:

Reason(s) why the Officer’s
recommendation was not

adopted:
v Siv GACI EICH CYNGORaArleinamdani
omeer Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru
Sl YOUur counciLdoitonline
Page 6 gy o www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER MEETING FOR REGENERATION & LEISURE
5™ APRIL 2017

CARMARTHEN TOWN MUSEUM

Background

This report considers options for Carmarthen Town Museum, which has a number of
infrastructural and operational challenges. Its location within Carmarthen Library function
room means it is closed when the room is in use. It is used to store stacks of materials and is
inaccessible and unsafe. The museum has been temporarily closed since November 2016
due to concerns over public safety. In 2016 it failed the Visit Wales VAQAS assessment due
to inaccessibility, poor signage, being used as a store, and inadequate size.

Carmarthenshire Museums will reapply for Museum Accreditation for each of its sites by June
2017. Carmarthen Town Museum has many fundamental shortcomings. Among these are
whether it is in fact a ‘museum’, when it is only a small display without staff, resources, no
collection of its own, and no public engagement. It is unlikely to achieve Accreditation.

Consideration is required to agree an appropriate and sustainable future for the display of
objects currently described as ‘Carmarthen Town Museum’.

Options

Option 1: remove Carmarthen Town Museum from the Museum Accreditation scheme
and integrate relevant collections within the new archivel/library development.

e Achievable and collections are more accessible;

e Improves public image of museums, archives, libraries.

Option 2: remove Carmarthen Town Museum from the Museum Accreditation scheme
and place collections into storage until a future use is agreed.

e Museums stores already over-full.

e No improvement to public access.

Option 3: maintain the status quo and apply for Museum Accreditation.
¢ Insufficient resources to develop the museum product to achieve Accreditation.
e Poor quality product reflects poorly on the service.

Option 1 is the recommended option.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES

wor Sir GAr A EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
oo Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire YOur counciLdoitonline
Cuny Cous® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales Page /



IMPLICATIONS

| confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / Heads
of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this report :

| Signed: lan Jones Head of Leisure
Policy and Legal Finance ICT Risk Organisational Physical
Crime & Management | Development Assets
Disorder Issues
NONE NONE YES NONE YES NONE NONE
3.Finance
Option 1

This option can be approached as either a low or high spec redisplay, subject to the
requirements of the archive/library development design brief.

Dismantle existing display In-house team / PHS £0

Redisplay and graphics £3,000 - £5,000

high specification option

New display case

Digital interpretation £1,500
Redisplay and graphics low Re-use old cases £0
specification option Printed interpretation In-house

Redisplay costs may be considered eligible as part of the wider capital development scheme.
Option 2

Due to a number of other pressing needs on museum storage, including the loss of the
furniture store at Carmarthenshire County Museum to the Tywi Gateway Trust and the
potential loss of stores at Parc Howard to a commercial tenant, the only immediate option is
commercial storage.

Dismantle and pack In-house team / PHS £0

existing display

Transportation In-house team In-house

Hire of secure storage unit External contract t.b.c.

Option 3

This option would realistically require major capital and ongoing revenue investment in order to
establish a museum product that meets minimum Accreditation and VAQAS standards.

EICH CYNGORarleinamdani

P
onsor Sir Gar 3 www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire
Page 8

YOur counciLdoitonline
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

./
o et
OO’IIYCO\\“O



5. Risk Management Issues

The risks presented by the current situation relate to museum artefacts being kept in
conditions where they cannot be monitored or managed because they are inaccessible and
obscured.

CONSULTATIONS

| confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are
as detailed below

Signed: lan Jones Head of Leisure

1. Scrutiny Committee N/a

2.Local Member(s) Clir. Alun Lenny and Clir. Jeff Thomas have been consulted and support
the recommended option.

3.Community / Town Council Distributed to Carmarthen Town Council for consultation.
Response due by 4t April so a narrative update on the response will be given.

4.Relevant Partners Library management are supportive of the proposal

5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations The Museums, Archives &
Libraries division of Welsh Government (MALD) have been engaged and support the
recommended option.

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THERE ARE NONE

wor Sir GAr A EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
oo Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire YOur counciLdoitonline
Cuny Cous® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Report of the Director of Community Services

Executive Board Member Decision Meeting for
Regeneration & Leisure

5th April, 2017

CARMARTHEN TOWN MUSUEM

Head of Service & Designation. Directorate Telephone No.
lan Jones, Head of Leisure Communities 01267 228309

Author & Designation Directorate Telephone No
Morrigan Mason, Museums Development Communities 01267 228696

Manager

This paper considers options for Carmarthen Town Museum following failings
highlighted in the 2016 Visit Wales VAQAS assessment and the requirement to
submit the museum service’s Museum Accreditation return by June 2017.

Background

Carmarthen Town Museum is on the lower ground floor of Carmarthen Library, in a
partitioned area within a function room. When the function room is in use, people
cannot visit the museum.

It tells the story of Carmarthen through items from the Carmarthenshire County
Collection. It achieved accredited status in 2013 and has the option to reapply in
2017. The museum is unstaffed and relies on the partnership with the library. It has
been closed to visitors since October 2016 over concerns relating to public safety.

Carmarthen Town Museum has previously achieved Accreditation as part of a larger,
umbrella service. On its own it cannot meet the basic requirements. It is essentially
a temporary display because it does not hold long-term collections of artefacts.
Venues for temporary exhibitions are not eligible for Accredited status. The umbrella
service under which Carmarthen Town Museum can apply for Accreditation is
Carmarthenshire Museum Service.

EICH cYNGoRr arleinamdani
wwwsirgarllyw.cymru

.
e Sir Gar B

Carmarthenshire

s o
iy [ i?

Your counciL doitonline Page 11

WLCANMAT TNENSIINe Qo v |



Museum Accreditation

Museum Accreditation is a UK-wide scheme which sets standards for museum
management, collections care and public service. In Wales the scheme is managed
by the Museums Archives and Libraries Division of Welsh Government in partnership
with Arts Council England. The scheme is voluntary and achieved by taking part in a
monitoring process to establish that the museum is meeting the necessary
standards.

Key challenges facing Carmarthen Town Museum

1. The museum service is operating too many sites with too few resources.
Carmarthen Town Museum failed the Visit Wales Visitor Attraction Quality
Assurance Scheme (VAQAS) assessment in 2016. This measures the suitability
of a venue as a ‘tourist attraction’. Failure to achieve VAQAS indicates that the
museum does not meet the definition of a ‘visitor attraction’.

2. Although VAQAS and Museum Accreditation are not linked, VAQAS
assessments are commissioned through MALD, the division of Welsh
Government that oversees Museum Accreditation. It could be questioned why
Carmarthen Town Museum was ever Accredited but in the context of the serious
deterioration that has occurred since 2013, it is unlikely that it will achieve
Accredited Museum status again in its present form.

3. Growing pressure on available space within Carmarthen Library has led to a
reduction in the size of the museum. It is now very limited in content. VAQAS
recommends the display should engage a visitor for at least an hour. The current
exhibition has content to occupy a visitor for approximately 10 minutes.

4. Pressure on space within the library has resulted in the museum being used as a
library store and it is regularly screened off and closed to visitors. This is
illustrated in the June 2016 VAQAS report:

“The museum is located down some stairs, in a very small area off of a disused
room. At the time of my visit, the entrance was screened off, and the area was
screened off, and it was full of stacked chairs and an old typewriter. Although the
staff member who had to show me to the museum did offer to move the chairs, it did
not create a good first impression.”

Photographs taken in October 2016 illustrate the situation

EICH cYNGoRr arleinamdani
wwwsirgarllyw.cymru

.
e Sir Gar B

Page 12 Car'martherr'lsh.ir:a:

s o
iy [ i?

your counciLdoitonline

WCarmartnensnire goy wile



Carmarthen Town
Museum

It has been
appropriated by the
library service as a
store. Boxes piled
high make it
inaccessible and
unsafe for visitors.

Entrance to
Carmarthen Town
Museum

Since this visit in
October 2016, the
museum is
advertised as
temporarily closed
due to concerns over
visitor safety.

5. The museum is signposted outside the building but internal signs to the museum
have been removed and visitors have to ask for assistance to find it.

“It is housed in the town's library, and there is a large sign outside the building,
indicating the presence of the museum. However once inside the building it was
not clear to me where the actual museum is located and | had to seek the
assistance of library staff.” Carmarthen Town Museum VAQAS Report, June
2016

Recommendations

Maintain the status quo and apply for Museum Accreditation anyway.

Y
cre Sir Gar ol wwwsirgar yw.cyrmiru

f_ EICH cYNGor arleinamdani

Carmarthenshire . .
: Your counciLdoitonline Page 13

oy, =" i i
Eoay e www carmarthenshire goviwales



The museum is not currently operational.

When open, its location within the library function room frequently meant it
was inaccessible.

There are no dedicated staff and no resources to improve displays or public
engagement.

Carmarthen Town Museum is unable to meet the basic Accreditation
standards relating to ‘organisational health’, ‘collections’, and ‘users and their
experiences’.

Remove Carmarthen Town Museum from the Museum Accreditation scheme
and integrate relevant collections within the new archivellibrary development.

The timing of this option coincides well with the development of the new
archive/library facility.

A transition from the current scenario with an isolated display in the basement
can be replaced fairly seamlessly with an integrated display woven throughout
the library.

This can be achieved with little expense if current materials are re-used; or a
higher specification can be achieved to tie in with the overall appearance of
the archive development.

Some (although not all) collections will remain accessible to visitors.

This approach should improve the public image of museums, archives,
libraries.
Collections will be better managed within available resources.

Remove Carmarthen Town Museum from the Museum Accreditation scheme
and place collections in storage until a future use is identified.

The trial closure of Carmarthen Town Museum since October has not led to
any complaint or customer feedback; it appears to have gone unnoticed.

The timing of this option in terms of pressure on museum stores is particularly
critical. Already identified as over-crowded, museum stores are under
increasing pressure to accommodate collections from other buildings that are
being leased to third parties. This is placing collections at risk from damage
and loss.

A commercial secure storage solution will be a short-term option to consider
until a long-term solution is achieved.

EICH cYNGoRr arleinamdani
wwwsirgarllyw.cymru

.
e Sir Gar B

Page 14

Carmarthenshire

s o
iy [ i?

your counciLdoitonline

WCarmartnensnire goy wile



Agenda Item 4

DATE: 5™ APRIL, 2017

Executive Board Member: Portfolio:

Clir. Meryl Gravell

Regeneration and Leisure

POLICY FOR PROVISION OF MEMORIAL BENCHES IN PUBLIC
OPEN SPACES

Recommendations / key decisions required:

e To approve the attached policy for application within Outdoor Recreation sites and

facilities.

Reasons:

e To enable the service to manage requests for memorials for loved ones from members

of the public.

e To ensure that applicants are aware of the arrangements and terms and conditions

where memorials are agreed.

Directorate

Communities

Name of Head of Service:
lan Jones

Report Author:
Richard Stradling

Designation:
Head of Leisure

Business & Projects
Manager

Tel No.
01267 228309
01267 228393

E Mail Address:
|[Jones@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
RStradling@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

Declaration of Personal Interest (if any):

Dispensation Granted to Make Decision (if any):

DECISION MADE:

Signed:

DATE:

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER

P N
oneor Sir Gar B

Q ~aa2Z
°"/lry o

Carmarthenshire

EICH cYNGORarleinamdani
www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

YOur counciLdoitonline
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales Page 15



The following section will be completed by the Democratic Services Officer in attendance
at the meeting

Recommendation of Officer YES / NO
adopted

Recommendation of the Officer
was adopted subject to the
amendment(s) and reason(s)
specified:

Reason(s) why the Officer’s
recommendation was not
adopted:

wor Sir Gar B EICH cYNGORarleinamdani
omser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . .
q <2 YOUR counciLdoitonline
Page 16 “nty con® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
EXECUTIVE BOAR MEMBER DECISION MEETING REGENERATION &
LEISURE
5™ APRIL, 2017

Policy for Provision of Memorial Benches in Public Open Spaces

Carmarthenshire County Council receives requests from members of the public who wish to
commemorate loved ones and or events by placing plaques on bench seating or other
structures or planting a tree or something similar within the country parks or public open
spaces. The policy sets out how requests will be considered and the terms and conditions
where requests are approved for areas managed by Outdoor Recreation Services or for the
Council.

There is no legislative requirement for the provision of public or memorial benches although it
is accepted that they provide a useful and valued public amenity and also valued by the
individuals and families who make the requests.

The policy recognises the need for a consistent approach to the provision of memorial
requests to be placed in public open spaces. It also acknowledges that applications will be
refused when the demands for memorials may be far greater than some geographical areas
can accommodate and requests for memorials are not in keeping with the surrounding areas.

The policy allows for the provision of new/additional items as well as the refurbishment of
existing items to ensure areas are not over populated with memorials. The policy therefore
continues to welcome requests, and although acknowledges requests are for standard items
it will also allow us to consider unique requests where it is appropriate to do so.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES -
Policy for Provision of Memorial Benches in Public Open Spaces

wor Sir Gar EICH cYNGORarleinamdani
oreer Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . .
o <2 YOUR couNciLdoitonline
“nty Cowt www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales Page 17



IMPLICATIONS

| confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / Heads
of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this report :

| Signed: _lan Jones Head of Leisure
Policy and Legal Finance ICT Risk Organisational Physical
Crime & Management | Development Assets
Disorder Issues
NONE NONE YES NONE NONE NONE YES
3. Finance

The cost of the memorial, whether it be a procurement of a new one or refurbishment of an
existing one will be borne in full by the applicant. There is no liability on the Council to maintain
the memorial other than to maintain them in the same way as similar items in the same area.

7. Physical Assets

Requests for additional benches/structures or trees etc. will only be considered at sites where
these additional items can be accommodated reasonably and or where the Council would seek to
increase the existing numbers in any event. This decision will be aided by any site specific
management plans.

CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed: lan Jones Head of Leisure

1. Scrutiny Committee - N/A
2.Local Member(s) - N/A
3.Community / Town Council - N/A
4 Relevant Partners - N/A

5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations - N/A

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THERE ARE NONE

wor Sir Gar EICH cYNGORarleinamdani
oreer Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . .
q <2 YOUR counciLdoitonline
Page 18 ity Conr www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



PN
omeor Sir Gar 2
Carmarthenshire

[/

('\ vy’ \
> g
Uty Cow"

Policy for Provision of Memorial Benches in
Public Open Spaces.

Introduction

Carmarthenshire County Council (the Council) receives requests from members of the
public who wish to commemorate loved ones and or events by placing plagues on
bench seating or other structures or planting a tree or something similar within the
country parks or public open spaces. This policy sets out how requests will be
considered and the terms and conditions where requests are approved for (areas
managed by Outdoor Recreation Services or for the Council)

There is no legislative requirement for the provision of public or memorial benches
although it is accepted that they provide a useful and valued public amenity and also
valued by the individuals and families who make the requests.

This policy recognises the need for a consistent approach to the provision of memorial
requests to be placed in public open spaces. It also acknowledges that the demands
for memorials may be far greater than some geographical areas can accommodate
and may include requests for memorials which are not in keeping with the surrounding
areas.

The policy therefore continues to welcome requests, and although acknowledges
requests are for standard items it will also allow us to consider unique requests where
it is appropriate to do so.

Policy principles:

The following principles will be applied in considering requests and making decisions
for memorials and will also set out the principles of the type of memorial to be
approved, the location and future maintenance and replacement.

1. The type of memorial requested must be in keeping with the area that it is to be
placed.

2. Requests for additional benches/structures or trees etc. will only be considered
at sites where these additional items can be accommodated reasonably and or
where the Council would seek to increase the existing numbers in any event.
This decision will be aided by any site specific management plans.

3. In locations where there will be several benches in the same area, no more
than 50% will be offered as a placement for a memorial bench. This is to prevent
the area taking on the ambience of a dedicated memorial garden which may
compromise the enjoyment of the space for general recreational activities.

4. The location will be chosen to minimise future maintenance and vandalism.

Remote locations with poor access for maintenance and users will not normally
be considered.

Page 19



PN
omeor Sir Gar 2
Carmarthenshire

[/

('\ vy’ \
> g
Uty Cow"

5. The full cost of a new memorial together with installation will be borne in full by
the applicant, where a refurbishment is agreed then the full cost of the
refurbishment will be borne by the applicant.

6. The applicant will provide the memorial plaque to a pre agreed design, size and
text.

7. The applicant will have no claim of ownership to the item and will not be
permitted to make any changes to the item after installation. Neither will they
be allowed to place any additional mementoes or memorials at the site whether
temporary or permanent.

8. The Council will maintain the item in the same way as it does similar items in
the vicinity.

9. The Council will not be responsible for replacing the item where, it has reached
the end of its natural life, replacement due to normal wear and tear, or for
replacement as a result of damage whether accidental or wilful.

10. The Council will from time to time set standards in respect of specific items and
requests will be considered in line with these standards. (e.g. construction
materials used for benches, maintenance costs and durability, colour etc.)

11.Occasionally a unique rather than standard item may be requested as a
memorial. In these circumstances, details of the construction, materials and
specifications will need to be submitted to the Council for consideration as part
of the approval process.

12.Requests to refurbish existing structures as well as for brand new items will be
considered and as part of the process the Council will determine whether
refurbishment or new provision is the most appropriate for each request.

13. Applicants who have approval will be asked to enter into an agreement with the
Council setting out the terms and conditions for the memorial. Where an
applicant is unwilling to agree to the terms and conditions then their request will
be refused.

14. Where appropriate the authority will set maximum limits for memorials, and
these may apply to individual locations, types of memorial, number of
installations in a period of time, these are examples and not an exhaustive list.

15.The Council reserves the right to refuse an application.

Page 20



PN
areer Sir Gar
Carmarthenshire

Yy

Q)aﬁfycml“é\\
Memorial Enquiry Form

Details of applicant

Name: -
Address: -
Telephone: -
Email: -

Please complete, print and return to: (return address)

Section A — Choice of Memorial

Please describe the type of memorial that you are proposing:-
Please state your preferred location for the memorial below (i.e. name of park/area and location)

1%t Choice: -
2" Choice: -
3rd Choice: -

Section B - Memorial Plague

All plaques will be provided by the applicant to a specification determined by the Council. (The plaque
size and specification will be determined by where the memorial is placed).

Please type the text that will appear on the plaque. Usually plaques will accommodate 4 lines of text:-
Example

IN MEMORY OF

AN OTHER

A GOOD FRIEND AND COLLEAGUE

1955 - 2016

For Office Use Only

Date Decision Reason Signature

Memorial Agreement

Page 21



PN
areer Sir Gar
Carmarthenshire

>,

Details of applicant

Name: -
Address: -
Telephone: -
Email: -

Memorial Location*: -
(*photo of installed memorial and associated plaque to be attached to this agreement for filing)

This agreement sets out the terms regarding your purchase/refurbishment of a memorial
............................... (bench/tree/etc) at ......ccccvevevecieereeeee e s v eneennn. (N@mMe of location)

e The memorial will be of a design approved by the Council

e The memorial will become the property of the Council whether it be provided by the applicant
or whether it be purchased by the authority and subsequently paid for by the applicant.

e The memorial shall be installed by an installer approved by the Council and in a manner
approved by the Council.

e Memorials where appropriate may have an engraved metal plaque attached to commemorate
loved ones. No additional mementoes e.g. vases, statues, flowers, wreaths, balloons or other
ornamentation etc., shall be permitted on or around the bench.

e  The Council will not accept applications for memorials to pets.

e The Council reserves the right to temporarily or permanently re-locate or remove the
memorial from its location without prior notice.

e The Council accepts no liability for damage to any memorial or plaque from vandals or third
parties. Such action may result in the memorial being removed permanently because of its
subsequent condition.

e All memorials will be the property of the Council, therefore, except for the memorial plaque,
memorials cannot be claimed as personal property.

e The memorial must not be painted, stained, have any work undertaken to it, or be changed in
anyway without the prior written consent of the Council. The Council will undertake

maintenance work in a similar way to similar items within the same area.

e The general public will have the right to benefit from the memorial e.g. if it’s a bench then
anybody is allowed to sit on it.

Page 22



PN
areer Sir Gar
Carmarthenshire

Yy

G, A
Uty Coun

e Memorials which fall into disrepair, decay or reach the end of their natural life will be removed
and not replaced.

e Memorials will not be ordered or purchased until the sum included in this agreement is paid
in full.

(ApPlicant Name) c.ccccveveeverereireee e ersse e s evenes will pay the sum of £.........ccceneee.

being the full cost agreed for the memorial and affixing of a plaque. (Supplied by applicant). | also
understand and agree to all the terms and conditions above and agree to pay the sum above in full.

On behalf of the applicant: - Date: -

On behalf of (insert facility): - Date: -

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



enda ltem

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A of the Local GO\grnment Act 1972 as amended
by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) (Wales) Order 2007.

Document is Restricted

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended
by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) (Wales) Order 2007.

Document is Restricted

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



enda ltem

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A of the Local GO\grnment Act 1972 as amended
by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) (Wales) Order 2007.

Document is Restricted

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended
by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) (Wales) Order 2007.

Document is Restricted

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 TO SIGN AS A CORRECT RECORD THE DECISION RECORD OF THE  MEETING HELD ON THE 16TH MARCH 2017.
	3 CARMARTHEN TOWN MUSEUM.
	REPORT

	4 POLICY FOR PROVISION OF MEMORIAL BENCHES IN PUBLIC OPEN SPACES.
	REPORT

	6 CARMARTHENSHIRE RURAL ENTERPRISE FUND- CAMBRIAN ICE CREAM.
	ANNEX

	7 CARMARTHENSHIRE RURAL ENTERPRISE FUND- NATURE'S BEST CATERING.
	ANNEX


